
 

 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 

 

Date: Wednesday 31st July, 2024 
Time: 4.30 pm 

Venue: Mandela Room (Municipal Buildings) 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
1.   Apologies for Absence 

 
  

2.   Declarations of Interest 
 

  

3.   Minutes - Overview and Scrutiny Board - 26 June 2024 
 

 3 - 8 

4.   Executive Forward Work Programme 
 

 9 - 22 

5.   Executive Member Update - Mayor and Executive Member for 
Adult Social Care and Public Health 
 
The Mayor and Executive Member for Adult Social Care and 
Public Health will be in attendance to provide an update in his 
capacity as portfolio holder for Adult Social Care and Public 
Health.  
 

  

6.   Local Government Boundary Commission Review 2024 - 
Consultation Update 
 
The Head of Legal Services (People) will be in attendance to 
provide an update on Middlesbrough’s Boundary review and 
the consultation exercise.  
 

 23 - 36 

7.   Scrutiny Work Programme 2024/2025 
 

 37 - 42 

8.   Scrutiny Chairs Update 
 
People Scrutiny Panel 
 
Chair -Cllr Edward Clynch 
Vice Chair – Cllr Jeanette Walker 
 
Place Scrutiny Panel 
 
Chair – Cllr David Branson 

  

Page 1



 

Vice Chair – Cllr Jack Banks 
 

9.   Any other urgent items which, in the opinion of the Chair, may 
be considered. 
 
 

  

 
Charlotte Benjamin 
Director of Legal and Governance Services 

 
Town Hall 
Middlesbrough 
Tuesday 23 July 2024 
 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillors I Blades (Chair), J Kabuye (Vice-Chair), J Banks, D Branson, E Clynch, 
D Coupe, J Ewan, B Hubbard, L Lewis, M McClintock, I Morrish, M Saunders, M Smiles, 
J Walker and G Wilson 
 
Assistance in accessing information 
 
Should you have any queries on accessing the Agenda and associated information 
please contact Scott Bonner/ Joanne Dixon, 01642 729708/ 01642 729713, 
scott_bonner@middlesbrough.gov.uk/ joanne_dixon@middlesbrough.gov.uk 
 

Page 2



Overview and Scrutiny Board 26 June 2024 
 

 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 
 
A meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Board was held on Wednesday 26 June 2024. 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors I Blades (Chair), J Kabuye (Vice-Chair), D Branson, E Clynch, 
D Coupe, J Ewan, B Hubbard, M McClintock and G Wilson 
 

OFFICERS: S Bonner, J Dixon and S Lightwing 
 
APOLOGIES FOR 
ABSENCE: 

Councillors J Banks, L Lewis, M Saunders, M Smiles and J Walker 

 
24/1 WELCOME AND FIRE EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

 
24/2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 There were no declarations of interest received at this point in the meeting.  

 
24/3 MINUTES - OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD - 7 MAY 2024 

 
 The minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Board meeting held on 7 May 2024 were submitted 

and approved as a correct record. 
 

24/4 SCRUTINY - WORK PLANNING 
 

 The Interim Manager of Democratic Services was in attendance to provide the Board with a 
presentation in relation to scrutiny work planning.   
 
Background was provided in relation to the scrutiny function and changes to the scrutiny 
structure in Middlesbrough, as agreed by the Overview and Scrutiny Board at its previous 
meeting on 7 May 2024. 
 
It was highlighted that, as the parent body, the Overview and Scrutiny Board would continue to 
oversee the work of the two newly formed Scrutiny Panels – People and Place.  The scrutiny 
process itself would largely continue as it had done previously, with the relevant Directors 
attending each of the Panels’ first meetings in July, to provide a service overview of the areas 
within the Panels’ remits, whilst highlighting priorities for the forthcoming year.   
 
Both Scrutiny Panels would also consider a Work Programme report setting out relevant topic 
suggestions that had been received as part of the consultation exercise seeking suitable topics.  
The Panels would set their own proposed work programmes and this would be submitted to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Board for approval.  It was suggested that the Panels should chose no 
more than three topics.  Democratic Services Officers would meet with Chairs and Vice Chairs 
during August to scope the selected topics and reviews would commence in September. 
 
Reference was made to the role and responsibilities of Scrutiny Chairs which included providing 
regular updates on the Panels’ work to the Overview and Scrutiny Board and presenting Final 
Reports to the Executive. 
 
Prior to commencing a scrutiny investigation, Chairs would be expected to work with the Panel 
to determine key lines of enquiry and terms of reference for the topic and to hold planning 
meetings with the Democratic Services Officers. 
 
During the course of a review, in conjunction with Democratic Services Officers, Chairs would 
ensure that the review adhered to the terms of reference, ensure any witnesses were briefed 
accordingly and to consider the format of the meeting. 
 
During Scrutiny Panel meetings, the Chair would be expected to introduce the meeting and 
guests and to explain the purpose of the meeting.  It was important to ensure the meeting did 
not become confrontational and stayed on topic, avoiding personal and/or Ward issues unless 
relevant to the review, to identify and allocate any tasks and to recap at the end of the meeting 
to identify any actions. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



26 June 2024 

 

 
All Scrutiny Panel Members would be invited to contribute towards:- 
 

 Agenda Setting – suggesting areas for investigation and to identify relevant witnesses 
that would contribute to the current topic. 

 Preparation – ensure meeting dates were in their diaries; read through the agenda pack 
prior to the meeting; prepare questions/possible areas of challenge; stick to the agenda 
and stay on topic. 

 Evidence Gathering – research the topic, question witnesses, visit other 
organisations/relevant witnesses and report back to the Panel. 

 
The role of Democratic Services Officers would be to arrange the meetings; prepare and publish 
agendas, reports and minutes; undertake research when requested by the Panel; liaise with 
officers and external organisations/services regarding input into the review and to brief 
witnesses attending meetings to give evidence; support Chairs to write Final Reports and 
arrange for submission to OSB and Executive; monitor progress of scrutiny recommendations 
and feed back to the Panels. 
 
Under the new scrutiny arrangements, each of the Scrutiny Panels and the Overview and 
Scrutiny Board would be supported by two Democratic Services Officers in order to try and 
maintain continuity and to avoid meeting cancellations where possible, for example, during 
periods of holiday or sickness. 
 
During the course of discussion, the following issues were raised:- 
 

 It was queried which scrutiny panel would scrutinise the areas of finance and legal and 
democratic services.  It was confirmed that as they were central services of the Council 
this would usually be OSB. 

 

 In response to a query regarding how many final reports had been submitted to the 
Executive from the Scrutiny Panels last year, it was confirmed that just three final 
reports had been submitted to Executive from the five scrutiny panels, two of which had 
been carried over from the previous year.   

 

 In response to a question around the completion of the previous Environment Scrutiny 
Panel’s final report, it was confirmed that, at its first meeting, the new Place Scrutiny 
Panel would have the opportunity to determine how it wished to proceed and whether 
it wished to continue to finalise a report for the Executive. 

 

 Reference was made to monitoring progress on scrutiny recommendations and 
clarification was provided that this would commence from the current year, however, 
should Members wish to be provided with an update in relation to previous 
recommendations, the relevant service area could be asked to provide an update. 

 
A Democratic Services Officer, continued the presentation, providing further details in relation 
to work programming and referred to guidance issued by Centre for Governance and Scrutiny 
(CfGS).  This included:- 
 

 What makes a good scrutiny topic – critical to the Council’s strategic plan; a big priority 
or concern to the community – affecting all or many people in the town; a major potential 
risk or threat; important opportunity or policy change. 

 Forming a good work plan that should be Member-led with leadership from Chairs with 
clear process and methodology and an end goal/objective in mind. 

 Knowing where ideas from the work plan should come from, such as the Council’s 
corporate plan, strategic documents, executive forward plans and key decisions, 
suggestions from officers, Members and other stakeholders through consultation 
exercise. 

 What makes a weak scrutiny topic – politically motivated, repetitious, micro-managing, 
backward looking. 

 
It was highlighted that the criteria for selecting suitable topics should include topics that fell 
within corporate or community priorities, topics identified by partners that were of joint concern, 

Page 4



26 June 2024 

 

where the service was performing poorly or high levels of dissatisfaction, where a review was 
likely to result in improvements for local people.   
 
Criteria for rejecting topics included where a topic had already been addressed in the last 12 
months; the topic was purely to provide Members with information; the topic was unlikely to 
result in improvements for the community and where scrutiny activity was unlikely to add value 
to Council priorities. 
 
Information was provided on implementing the work plan which should be flexible to reflect 
changing or emerging priorities and also to manage the work programming process in terms of 
identifying key witnesses and how many meetings the review was likely to take.  Outcomes from 
the review should have a high impact. 
 
A discussion ensued and the following issues were raised:- 
 

 Reference was made to instances where scrutiny may only need to hold one meeting 
to consider the issue it wished to examine, or a one-off meeting to consider an urgent 
matter, and it was queried whether the same process would apply in terms of producing 
a final report.  It was stated that where any recommendations came out of the meeting, 
these could be compiled into a briefing note with recommendations for the Executive to 
consider. 

 

 It was acknowledged that liaison between Overview and Scrutiny Board and the 
Executive was critical and it was queried whether external organisations could be 
required to attend scrutiny as there had been occasions where, after agreeing to attend 
scrutiny meetings, they had failed to attend.  It was clarified that internal Council officers 
and Members and representatives of other public bodies, such as the Police and Health 
Services, could be required to attend scrutiny meetings.  External organisations could 
be invited to attend but could not be ordered to attend. 
 

 Reference was made to not focussing review topics on one specific ward and it was 
queried how issues in that ward could be dealt with.  It was suggested that Ward 
Councillors could speak to neighbouring and other area ward councillor to determine 
whether those issues existed elsewhere in the town and, if so, whether it was a matter 
for scrutiny or needed to be dealt with through the correct processes.   

 
The Officers were thanked for their presentation and the information provided. 
 
AGREED that the information provided be noted. 
 

24/5 EXECUTIVE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 
 

 The Chair introduced the item and highlighted that previously the Overview and Scrutiny Board 
had received the Executive Forward Work Programme at each meeting for noting and proposed 
that the Board should look at each item on the Programme in greater detail, going forward. 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Board had delegated powers to manage the work of scrutiny and 
was able to undertake investigations itself or delegate the work to individual scrutiny panels. 
 
A key duty of OSB was to hold the Executive to account by considering forthcoming decisions 
of the Executive and to decide whether scrutiny could add value by considering any matter in 
advance of decisions being made.  Greater involvement in pre-decision scrutiny would help to 
negate a non-executive member’s ability to call-in a decision after it had been made. 
 
Suggestions were sought from the Board regarding the possible ways in which to have 
involvement in pre-decision scrutiny and the following issues were raised:- 
 

 A Member commented that some of the items contained on the Forward Work 
Programme had been made in May and, therefore, it was too late for OSB to have any 
input into, whilst other items were due to be decided upon in July so it was unlikely that 
a report had yet been compiled for submission to Executive and it was queried at what 
stage OSB could become involved.  It was acknowledged that it was difficult in terms 
of timing and background to the Forward Work Programme was provided. 

 

Page 5



26 June 2024 

 

 It was explained that any decisions which involved spending £250,000 or more and/or 
affected two or more wards in Middlesbrough was a key decision and must be placed 
on the Forward Work Programme at least 28 days prior to a decision being made by 
the Executive.  It was considered best practice to also add non-key decisions to the 
Programme, as was the case in Middlesbrough.  In terms of the report creation process, 
there should be a 46-day lead in period prior to the report being submitted for decision, 
so it would be possible to speak to Executive Members (and/or relevant officers) prior 
to the decision being made.  Once the Executive had made a decision, it would become 
live within five days of the decision being made but remained on the Forward Work 
Programme, therefore, there would always be items on the programme where decisions 
had already taken place. 

 

 It was also highlighted that the Forward Work Programme was available to view on the 
Council’s website, so Members could view it at any time.  Where the Board wished to 
find out more about a particular item, the further ahead the decision was due to be 
made, the better it would be in terms of having the opportunity to have input. 

 

 In addition, it was suggested that the Chair and Members may wish to agree to set up 
their own small task and finish groups to look at specific issues and report back to the 
following meeting of OSB. 

 

 In summary, the Forward Work Programme could be examined at any time by any 
Member but the format in which information was requested and received may need to 
be tailored to each item depending on timescales.  Members would not necessarily 
need to see a written report but may receive information about the content of the report 
and a description of what the decision was about.   

 

 It was acknowledged that any dialogue between the scrutiny and executive functions 
would require mutual trust and that whilst scrutiny could have an input in terms of 
making recommendations, decisions were ultimately made by the Executive. 

 

 A Member suggested recording the issues that the Board looked at from the Forward 
Work Programme, including what information was received, what the outcome of the 
decision was, whether the Board’s intervention (if any) was affective, etc.  This could 
be reported to OSB on a twice-yearly basis to monitor progress as monitoring progress 
of recommendations was something that needed to be strengthened. 

 

 It was queried whether there was any way of knowing when a written report was 
expected in relation to an item on the Forward Work Programme.  It was explained that 
the Forward Work Programme was constantly being updated by the service areas and 
that some decisions were moved back to later dates but generally a final version of the 
report would be published five clear working days before the date of the decision-
making meeting. 

 
AGREED that the content of the Forward Work Programme be noted and that for future 
meetings, each item on the programme would be considered to determine whether any further 
information was needed and what format this should take. 
 

24/6 OSB WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24 
 

 A report was submitted to invite the Overview and Scrutiny Board to consider its work 
programme for the 2024/25 Municipal Year and to suggest potential topics for the People and 
Places Scrutiny Panels. 
 
Members were aware that at the Overview and Scrutiny Board meeting held on 7 May 2024, a 
new structure for scrutiny arrangements in Middlesbrough was agreed. Consequently, OSB 
would work with both the People and Place Scrutiny Panels to deliver scrutiny in Middlesbrough.  
The following topics were placed on OSB’s work programme last year (2023/24) but were not 
progressed due to other emerging issues:- 
 

 Homelessness 

 Electoral Registration 

 Cyber Security 

Page 6



26 June 2024 

 

 
A review of Homelessness had initially been commenced by a previous Ad-Hoc Scrutiny Panel 
and was carried over to OSB last year.  The review had been partially scoped following the 
agreement of terms of reference to investigate what support is provided for those who find 
themselves homeless and how they could be helped out of homelessness. 
 
No scoping exercises had been undertaken for either the electoral registration or cyber security 
topics.   
 
The submitted report also outlined a number of topic suggestions received as part of the scrutiny 
consultation exercise which sought suitable topic suggestions from Council Officers, Partner 
organisations, Members and members of the public.  Suggested topics had been allocated to 
the relevant Scrutiny Panel (People or Place) for consideration at their respective first meetings.  
In addition, each of the Scrutiny Panels were also required to receive a number of statutory 
updates throughout the year and these were also listed in the report. 
 
The Board was asked to consider whether it wished to continue with any of the three topics it 
had placed on its work programme last year; whether it wished to allocate any of them to the 
People or Place Scrutiny Panels; or whether it had any additional suggestions it wished to place 
on its own work programme or to put forward to the other scrutiny panels for consideration. 
 
A discussion took place and the Chair expressed the view that the topic of homelessness would 
be best placed with the People Scrutiny Panel and proposed it should be put forward as a 
suggestion for consideration to be included within its work programme.  The Chair suggested 
that the topic of electoral registration be put to one side until after the general election on 4 July 
as the position on this may change depending on the Government elected to power and could 
always be revisited at a later date if appropriate. 
 
With regard to cyber security, it was noted that this was being investigated by other Government 
organisations and it was considered that OSB should not duplicate the work already being done. 
 
The Chair suggested that scrutiny should consider the issue of Home to School Transport and 
the Chair of the People Scrutiny Panel confirmed that he would discuss this with the Scrutiny 
Panel for inclusion on its work programme. 
 
The Chair of the Place Scrutiny Panel advised that he would be suggesting the topic of 
environmental maintenance (including maintaining overhanging trees, grass, paving and 
rewilding areas) for inclusion in the Place Scrutiny Panel Work Programme.   
 
A Member of the Board referred to the suggestion of rubbish dumping for Place Scrutiny Panel 
to include fly tipping by businesses and landlords. 
 
Members formed the view that if OSB were to scrutinise the Forward Work Programme more 
thoroughly, invite Executive Members to each meeting and also monitor developments in 
relation to the ward boundary review and Middlesbrough local plan, it would have little time to 
scrutinise review topics and decided against setting any review topics for its work programme 
but would look into emerging issues where necessary. 
 
AGREED as follows:- 
 

1. That the Overview and Scrutiny Board’s Work Programme for 2024/25 would consist 
of:- 

 
i. Further enquiries in relation to items on the Executive Forward Work Programme, 

to be determined on a meeting-by-meeting basis by the Board. 
ii. A schedule of Executive Member attendance at OSB meetings. 
iii. The outstanding topic of Homelessness be forwarded to the People Scrutiny Panel 

for consideration for inclusion in its work programme. 
iv. The outstanding topic of Electoral Registration be put on hold until 2025/26 if 

appropriate. 
v. The outstanding topic of Cyber Security be discontinued as other organisations 

were scrutinising this. 
vi. That an additional topic of Environmental Maintenance be forwarded to the Place 

Scrutiny Panel for consideration for inclusion in its work programme. 

Page 7



26 June 2024 

 

vii. That the issue of fly tipping by businesses and landlords be added to the suggestion 
of ‘Rubbish Dumping’ for the Place Scrutiny Panel. 

 
2. That the Overview and Scrutiny Board would investigate emerging issues as and when 

necessary. 
 

24/7 ANY OTHER URGENT ITEMS WHICH, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR, MAY BE 
CONSIDERED. 
 

 None. 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 8



 

1 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
Report of: Chief Executive 

 

Relevant Executive 
Member: 

Not applicable 

 

Submitted to: Overview and Scrutiny Board 

 

Date: 31 July 2024 

 

Title: Executive Forward Work Programme 

 

Report for: Discussion 

 

Status: Public 

 

Council Plan 
priority: 

Delivering Best Value 

 

Key decision: Not applicable 

Why: Not applicable 

 

Subject to call in?: Not applicable 

Why: Not applicable 

 

 

Executive summary  

OSB has delegated powers to manage the work of Scrutiny and, if appropriate, it can 
either undertake the work itself or delegate to individual Scrutiny Panels. 

 
One of the main duties of OSB is to hold the Executive to account by considering the 
forthcoming decisions of the Executive and decide whether value can be added by 
Scrutiny considering the matter in advance of any decision being made.  

 
This would not negate a Non-Executive Member’s ability to call-in a decision after it has 
been made. 
 

 
  

Proposed decision(s) 

It is recommended that the Overview and Scrutiny Board consider the content of the 
Executive Forward Work Programme. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 

2 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
1. Purpose 

 
1.1 To make OSB aware of items on the Executive Forward Work Programme. 
 
2. Recommendations  

 
2.1 That the Overview and Scrutiny Board It is recommended that the Overview and Scrutiny 

Board consider the content of the Executive Forward Work Programme. 
 
3. Rationale for the recommended decision(s) 

 
3.1 OSB has delegated powers to manage the work of Scrutiny and, if appropriate, it can 

either undertake the work itself or delegate to individual Scrutiny Panels. 
 

3.2 One of the main duties of OSB is to hold the Executive to account by considering the 
forthcoming decisions of the Executive and decide whether value can be added by 
Scrutiny considering the matter in advance of any decision being made.  
 

3.3 This would not negate a Non-Executive Member’s ability to call-in a decision after it has 
been made. 

 
5. Other potential alternative(s) and why these have not been recommended 

 
5.1 Not applicable. 

 
6. Impact(s) of the recommended decision(s) 

 
6.1 Financial (including procurement and Social Value) 

Not applicable  
6.2 Legal 

Not applicable 

6.3 Risk 
Not applicable 

6.4 Human Rights, Public Sector Equality Duty and Community Cohesion 
Not applicable 

6.5 Climate Change / Environmental  
Not applicable 

6.6 Children and Young People Cared for by the Authority and Care Leavers 
Not applicable 

6.7 Data Protection 
Not applicable 

 
Actions to be taken to implement the recommended decision(s) 
 

Action Responsible Officer Deadline 

Implement any decision of 
the Overview and Scrutiny 
Board with regard to the 

Relevant Officer As directed by OSB 

Page 10



 

3 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Executive Forward Work 
Plan.  
 

 
Appendices 
 

A Forward Work Plan 

 
Background papers 
 

Body Report title Date 

NA             

 
Contact:  Scott Bonner/ Joanne Dixon 
Email:  scott_bonner@middlesbrough.gov.uk/joanne_dixon@middlesbrough.gov.uk) 
 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
 

Forward Plan 1 January 2024 - 31 December 2024 
 

FOR THE PERIOD 23 JULY 2024 TO 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 

Ref No. 
/ Ward 

Subject / Decision Decision 
Maker and 
Decision Due 
Date 

Council Strategy 
 

Key / 
PFP 

Likely 
Exemption 

Background 
documents 

Member /  
Officer Contact 

The Mayor and Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Public Health 
 

I019346 
All 
Wards 

South Tees Clean 
Air Strategy 
Key decision for 
approval. 

Executive 
24 Jul 2024 
 

 KEY Public 
 

 
 

The Mayor and Executive 
Member for Adult Social Care 
& Public Health 
Judith Hedgley, Head of 
Service - Public Protection  
judith_hedgley@middlesbroug
h.gov.uk 
 

I018999 
 

Third progress 
report of the 
Middlesbrough 
Independent 
Improvement 
Advisory Board 
to provide the 
Executive with a 

Executive 
24 Jul 2024 
 

  Public 
 

 
 

The Mayor and Executive 
Member for Adult Social Care 
& Public Health 
Clive Heaphy, Chief Execuitve  
clive_heaphy@middlesbrough.
gov.uk 
 

P
age 13



Ref No. 
/ Ward 

Subject / Decision Decision 
Maker and 
Decision Due 
Date 

Council Strategy 
 

Key / 
PFP 

Likely 
Exemption 

Background 
documents 

Member /  
Officer Contact 

2 

report that 
summarises the 
Board’s views on 
the Council’s 
progress in relation 
to addresses 
weaknesses within 
its corporate 
governance 
arrangements 

I017724 
All 
Wards 

Gambling Policy 
2024-2029 
Statutory 
requirement to have 
gambling policy to 
place. 

Executive 
3 Sep 2024 
 

 KEY Public 
 

 
 

The Mayor and Executive 
Member for Adult Social Care 
& Public Health 
Judith Hedgley, Head of 
Service - Public Protection  
judith_hedgley@middlesbroug
h.gov.uk 
 

I018729 
Linthorp
e 

EXEMPT: Options 
for Utilisation of 
Levick Court 
Residential Care 
Home 
As part of the 
budget savings the 
re-provisioning of 
Levick Court 
Residential Care 
Home was identified 
and within that 
included the option 
to provide 

Executive 
4 Sep 2024 
 

 KEY Fully exempt 
 

 
 

The Mayor and Executive 
Member for Adult Social Care 
& Public Health 
Suzanne Hodge  
suzanne_hodge@middlesbrou
gh.gov.uk 
 

P
age 14



Ref No. 
/ Ward 

Subject / Decision Decision 
Maker and 
Decision Due 
Date 

Council Strategy 
 

Key / 
PFP 

Likely 
Exemption 

Background 
documents 

Member /  
Officer Contact 

3 

alternative 
residential care for 
the current service 
users and seek 
opportunities to 
maximise the 
utilisation of the 
property working 
with partner 
organisations. 
Approval is 
therefore required 
on the 
recommended 
option and the 
potential to consult 
with staff in terms of 
potential 
redundancies.  
Approval is being 
sought on the 
recommended 
option for the 
utilisation of Levick 
Court Residential 
Care Home 

I019347 
All 
Wards 

Review of Licensing 
fees for Houses in 
Multiple Occupation 
Key decision for 
approval. 

Executive 
4 Sep 2024 
 

 KEY Public 
 

 
 

The Mayor and Executive 
Member for Adult Social Care 
& Public Health 
Judith Hedgley, Head of 
Service - Public Protection  

P
age 15



Ref No. 
/ Ward 

Subject / Decision Decision 
Maker and 
Decision Due 
Date 

Council Strategy 
 

Key / 
PFP 

Likely 
Exemption 

Background 
documents 

Member /  
Officer Contact 

4 

judith_hedgley@middlesbroug
h.gov.uk 
 

Deputy Mayor and Executive Member for Education and Culture 
 

I018884 
All 
Wards 

South Tees Youth 
Justice Plan 2024-
2025 
 

Executive 
24 Jul 2024 
 

  Public 
 

 
 

Deputy Mayor and Executive 
Member for Education and 
Culture 
Kay Dargue, Head of 
Partnerships  
kay_dargue@middlesbrough.g
ov.uk 
 

Executive Member for Community Safety 
 

I018593 
All 
Wards 

Community Safety 
Partnership Plan 
The Council have a 
statutory obligation 
to develop and 
publish a 
Community Safety 
Plan every 2 years. 

Executive 
24 Jul 2024 
 

 KEY Public 
 

 
 

Executive Member for 
Community Safety 
Marion Walker, Head of 
Stronger Communities  
marion_walker@middlesbroug
h.gov.uk 
 

I019044 
All 
Wards 

Community Safety 
Enforcement 
Powers 
For the Executive 
Member to approve 
proposals to 
withdraw 

Executive 
Member for 
Community 
Safety 
2 Sep 2024 
 

  Public 
 

 
 

Councillor Janet Thompson, 
Executive Member for 
Community Safety 
Jane Hill  
Jane_hill@middlesbrough.gov.
uk 
 

P
age 16



Ref No. 
/ Ward 

Subject / Decision Decision 
Maker and 
Decision Due 
Date 

Council Strategy 
 

Key / 
PFP 

Likely 
Exemption 

Background 
documents 

Member /  
Officer Contact 

5 

Neighbourhood 
Warden Police 
Accreditation 
Powers 

Executive Member for Environment 
 

I019437 
All 
Wards 

Integrated 
Transport Strategy 
Executive to 
approve the update 
of the current 
Integrated 
Transport Strategy. 

Executive 
4 Sep 2024 
 

 KEY Public 
 

 
 

Executive Member for 
Environment 
Chris Orr  
Chris_Orr@middlesbrough.go
v.uk 
 

Executive Member for Finance and Governance 
 

I018905 
All 
Wards 

Vulnerability Policy 
Vulnerability Policy - 
3 year review 

Executive 
4 Sep 2024 
 

 KEY Public 
 

 
 

Councillor Nicky Walker, 
Executive Member for Finance 
& Governance 
Martin barker  
martin_barker@middlesbroug
h.gov.uk, Janette Savage, 
Head of Resident and 
Business Support  
Janette_Savage@middlesbrou
gh.gov.uk 
 

I019079 
All 
Wards 

CIPFA Review of 
Council's Financial 
Management 
Arrangements 

Executive 
24 Jul 2024 
 

 KEY Public 
 

 
 

Executive Member for Finance 
and Governance 
 
 

P
age 17



Ref No. 
/ Ward 

Subject / Decision Decision 
Maker and 
Decision Due 
Date 

Council Strategy 
 

Key / 
PFP 

Likely 
Exemption 

Background 
documents 

Member /  
Officer Contact 

6 

 

I019430 
All 
Wards 

Cash Handling 
Policy 
No current policy, 
Executive approval 
needed for new 
policy as per 
Constitution 

Executive 
Member for 
Finance and 
Governance 
5 Aug 2024 
 

  Public 
 

 
 

Executive Member for Finance 
and Governance 
Justin Weston  
Justin_Weston@middlesbroug
h.gov.uk 
 

I018904 
All 
Wards 

ASC Residential 
Charging Policy 
ASC Residential 
Charging Policy - 3 
year review 

Executive 
2 Oct 2024 
 

 KEY Public 
 

 
 

Councillor Nicky Walker, 
Executive Member for Finance 
& Governance 
Martin barker  
martin_barker@middlesbroug
h.gov.uk, Janette Savage, 
Head of Resident and 
Business Support  
Janette_Savage@middlesbrou
gh.gov.uk 
 

Executive Member for Regeneration 
 

I019148 
All 
Wards 

Scrutiny Review - 
Planning Capacity 
Service response to 
the Regeneration 
Scrutiny Panel 
Review of capacity 
within the planning 
service. 

Executive 
24 Jul 2024 
 

 KEY Public 
 

 
 

Executive Member for 
Regeneration 
Richard Horniman, Director of 
Regeneration  
Richard_Horniman@middlesbr
ough.gov.uk 
 

P
age 18



Ref No. 
/ Ward 

Subject / Decision Decision 
Maker and 
Decision Due 
Date 

Council Strategy 
 

Key / 
PFP 

Likely 
Exemption 

Background 
documents 

Member /  
Officer Contact 

7 

I019207 
Hemlingt
on 

The disposal of land 
at Hemlington 
Grange West 
To seek Executive 
approval for the 
disposal of the 
Hemlington Grange 
West site in 
accordance with the 
Council’s Asset 
Disposal Process, 
and to inform 
Executive of the 
next steps to take 
the site to market. 

Executive 
24 Jul 2024 
 

 KEY Public 
 

 
 

Executive Member for 
Regeneration 
Nicola Norman  
nicola_norman@middlesbroug
h.gov.uk 
 

I019344 
Nunthor
pe 

Disposal of Land 
Nunthorpe at 
Nunthorpe Grange 
To seek Executive 
approval to dispose 
of the land at 
Nunthorpe Grange.  

Executive 
4 Sep 2024 
 

 KEY Public 
 

 
 

Executive Member for 
Regeneration 
Richard Horniman, Director of 
Regeneration  
Richard_Horniman@middlesbr
ough.gov.uk 
 

I019349 
All 
Wards 

Cemetery Provision 
Setting out the 
future plan for 
cemetery provision. 

Executive 
2 Oct 2024 
 

 KEY Public 
 

 
 

Executive Member for 
Regeneration 
Richard Horniman, Director of 
Regeneration  
Richard_Horniman@middlesbr
ough.gov.uk 
 

P
age 19



Ref No. 
/ Ward 

Subject / Decision Decision 
Maker and 
Decision Due 
Date 

Council Strategy 
 

Key / 
PFP 

Likely 
Exemption 

Background 
documents 

Member /  
Officer Contact 

8 

I017049 
All 
Wards 

Capex Municipal 
Buildings and Town 
Hall Roofs 
Any matters relating 
to bids for funding, 
which are financially 
or strategically 
significant and have 
not been provided 
for within the 
financial and policy 
framework. 

Executive 
2 Oct 2024 
 

 KEY Public 
 

 
 

Executive Member for 
Regeneration 
Teresa Garrett  
teresa_garrett@middlesbroug
h.gov.uk 
 

I019341 
Berwick 
Hills and 
Pallister; 
Park 
End and 
Beckfiel
d 

Southlands Facility 
Contract Delivery 
To seek Executive 
approval to 
commence the 
contractor 
procurement 
process and 
delivery of the 
Southlands Facility. 

Executive 
2 Oct 2024 
 

 KEY Public 
 

 
 

Executive Member for 
Regeneration 
Richard Horniman, Director of 
Regeneration  
Richard_Horniman@middlesbr
ough.gov.uk 
 

I019345 
All 
Wards 

Management and 
Maintenance of 
Development Land / 
Nutrient Neutrality 
Mitigation 
The report seeks 
Executive approval 
of the resources 
required to maintain 
land held prior to 

Executive 
11 Nov 2024 
 

 KEY Public 
 

 
 

Executive Member for 
Regeneration 
Richard Horniman, Director of 
Regeneration  
Richard_Horniman@middlesbr
ough.gov.uk 
 

P
age 20



Ref No. 
/ Ward 

Subject / Decision Decision 
Maker and 
Decision Due 
Date 

Council Strategy 
 

Key / 
PFP 

Likely 
Exemption 

Background 
documents 

Member /  
Officer Contact 

9 

disposal / 
development and 
the management of 
land held fallow as 
part of the Nutrient 
Neutrality mitigation 
measures. Report 
seeks management 
resources to be 
capitalised as an 
abnormal cost to 
disposal receipts. 

 

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Overview & Scrutiny Board 
31st July 2024

Middlesbrough Council
Electoral Review

Ann-Marie Wilson – Head of Legal Services (People)

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 6



AGENDA
1. Electoral Review Update

2. How to submit comments

3. What to consider

4. Key dates

5. OSB role

6. Questions?

P
age 24



1. Electoral Review UpdateP
age 25



4

PHASE ONE
Number of councillors

An electoral review 
considers the 

electoral 
arrangements for a 

local authority

What is an Electoral Review?

PHASE TWO
Warding patterns

PHASE THREE
Consultation on draft 

recommendations

By Whom?
Local Government Boundary Commission 
for England (LGBCE)

P
age 26



5

Draft Recommendations
• Draft recommendations published on 9th July 2024

• LGBCE propose that 46 councillors should be elected to Middlesbrough 

• They have also proposed new ward boundaries across the authority

• A public consultation on the proposals will run from 9 July 2024 to 16 September 2024.

• Confirmed that they considered all representations received from local people and 
organisations during the initial consultation (inc MBC)

• The LGBCE are now inviting comments on the proposals before they finalise the new 
electoral arrangements

• They will then consider every response received during the consultation period and will weigh 
each response against the statutory criteria

• Draft recommendations can be viewed at https://www.lgbce.org.uk/all-reviews/middlesbrough. 
Interactive pages give access to the full recommendations. They also allow people to explore 
maps of the proposals in greater detail and make comments. 

P
age 27

https://www.lgbce.org.uk/all-reviews/middlesbrough


2. How to submit comments

P
age 28



How to submit comments
Responses to the proposals can be made by any individual, group, or organisation, by 
way of any of the means below:

• Online at the LGBCE website at https://www.lgbce.org.uk/all-reviews/middlesbrough

• by email         reviews@lgbce.org.uk

• by post          The Review Officer (Middlesbrough)
LGBCE, PO Box 133, Blyth, NE24 9FE

• The Commission’s main website contains further information about the electoral 
review and their work: http://www.lgbce.org.uk

P
age 29

https://www.lgbce.org.uk/all-reviews/middlesbrough
https://lgbce.sharepoint.com/sites/ReviewSystem/Review%20Assistant/Launch%20material/Letters/2.%20Draft%20recs%20launch/reviews@lgbce.org.uk?xsdata=MDV8MDJ8QW5ubWFyaWVfV2lsc29uQG1pZGRsZXNicm91Z2guZ292LnVrfGM5NjJkZTE2ZjIwZDQ2MzQwNWMzMDhkY2EwMGJkZmU3fDgwZTNjMjJiOWYzMDQ0YWZiMTk4MTk3NWRiNzc3OThhfDB8MHw2Mzg1NjEyMjAwNjM0MjAzOTZ8VW5rbm93bnxUV0ZwYkdac2IzZDhleUpXSWpvaU1DNHdMakF3TURBaUxDSlFJam9pVjJsdU16SWlMQ0pCVGlJNklrMWhhV3dpTENKWFZDSTZNbjA9fDB8fHw%3d&sdata=K3cxWVBVdjFPUU1ML2l0eHRRYjAza3IwVnNaeDR3cUg5ZFg4bmxVL3lHQT0%3d
http://www.lgbce.org.uk


3. What to consider

P
age 30



www.lgbce.org.uk | consultation.lgbce.org.uk | @lgbce | reviews@lgbce.org.uk 

Statutory criteria

Electoral 
equality for 

voters

Effective and 
convenient local 

government

Community 
identities and 

interests

All votes should 
carry the same 
weight, based 

on forecast 
electorate

Councillors 
should 

represent the 
same number 

of electors

Communities 
should be 

represented

Different 
communities 

may be joined 
together

Clear and 
identifiable 
boundaries

Coherent 
wards – 
logical to 
represent

P
age 31



www.lgbce.org.uk | consultation.lgbce.org.uk | @lgbce | reviews@lgbce.org.uk 

Making a clear submission

- Think about the three criteria – try not to jettison one in favour of 
another, it should be a balance

- Anticipate where issues might arise – are there any known flashpoints?

- Let the LGBCE know your views on the proposals (positive or negative) 
and any alternatives

- LGBCE advise that Boundaries can change between draft and 
final recommendations as a direct result of evidence received

P
age 32



4. KEY DATES

P
age 33



Consultation on draft 
recommendations
9 July 2024 to 

16 September 2024

Final recommendations
Published 

February 2025

Review Timeline

www.lgbce.org.uk | @lgbce | reviews@lgbce.org.uk 

Order Made 
Spring/Summer 2025

Elected upon 
2027

P
age 34



5. Role of OSB
• Discussion point – do we want to submit a join response to the draft 

recommendations

• If so – what will that look like?

P
age 35



5. Questions

P
age 36



1 

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
Report of: Director of Legal and Governance Services  

 

Submitted to: Overview and Scrutiny Board 

 

Date: 31 July 2024 

 

Title: Setting the Scrutiny Work Programme 2024/2025 

 

Report for: Decision 

 

Status: Public 

 

Strategic priority: All 

 

Key decision: Not applicable 

Why: Not applicable 

 

Urgent: Not applicable 

Why: Not Applicable 

 

Executive summary  

 
Overview and Scrutiny Board is asked to consider and agree individual Panel work 
programmes for the 2024/25 Municipal Year.   
 
When considering the work programme, the Board is asked to ensure that topics agreed 
for inclusion:  

 Affect a group of people living within the Middlesbrough area. 

 Relate to a service, event or issue in which the Council has a significant 
stake or over which the Council has an influence. 

 Are not issues which the Overview and Scrutiny Board or the scrutiny panels 
have considered during the last 12 months. 

 Do not relate to an individual service complaint. 

 Do not relate to matters dealt with by another Council committee, unless the 
issue deals with procedure. 

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



2 

Purpose 
 
1. The purpose of the report if for the Overview and Scrutiny Board to determine the 

Scrutiny Work Programme for 2024/2025. 
 
Background and relevant information 
 
2. At the start of every Municipal Year, scrutiny panels discuss the topics that they would 

like to review during the coming year. Work programmes are useful as they provide some 
structure to a scrutiny panel’s activity and allow for the effective planning and preparation 
of work. As part of the process for establishing the work programme, support officers 
gather information/views from a number of sources. Below is a list of topics which were 
agreed at the relevant scrutiny panel.  
 

3. The topics agreed by each Scrutiny Panel for the municipal year 2024/2025 are listed 
below in turn for the Board’s approval. Members are advised that the People Scrutiny 
Panel met on the 15 July but did not agree a work programme for the coming year. The 
Panel will meet to agree its work programme at its meeting on 16 September 2024 after 
which OSB will be able to consider that work programme at its meeting on 25 September 
2024.  

 

Place Scrutiny Panel 
 

4. The Place Scrutiny Panel met on 29 July 2024 and agreed to put forward the following 
topics:- 

 
In-depth reviews: 

 

 Empty Properties. 

 Barriers to Regeneration. 

 Home to School Transport. 
 

Potential Short Reviews/ Updates: 
 

 Bereavement Services (in relation to diminishing cemetery space)  

 Provision for Migrants 
 
Updates: 

 

 Flood Risk Management. 

 Toxic Chemicals in the River Tees/Crustacean Working Group. 

 RIPA (Regulation of Investigatory Powers) – annual update. 

 Prevent and Channel – annual update. 

 Community Safety Partnership – annual update. 

 Medium Term Financial Plan Refresh for Regeneration and Environment and 
Community Services Directorates 

 

The Place Scrutiny Panel also agreed that a Task and Finish Group will review progress 

on actions from some previous investigations including: Green Strategy, Waste Recycling 

and Town Centre Regeneration post-Covid. 

Page 38



3 

 

Throughout the last municipal year, the Environment Scrutiny Panel undertook a detailed 

investigation into Waste Management.  It was agreed that a draft Final Report on Waste 

Management should presented to the Place Scrutiny Panel for consideration at the earliest 

opportunity. 

What decision(s) are being recommended?  
 
9. That in respect of the scrutiny work programme for 2024/2025 the Overview and 

Scrutiny Board approves the inclusion of those topics put forward by the Place 
Scrutiny Panel.  

  
Rationale for the recommended decision(s) 
 
10. The Overview and Scrutiny Board is required to consider and approve the Scrutiny 

Work Programme for the forthcoming Municipal Year.  
 
Other potential decision(s) and why these have not been recommended 
 
11. No other options are put forward as part of the report.  
 
Impact(s) of the recommended decision(s) 
 
Legal 
 
12. Not Applicable 
 
Strategic priorities and risks 
 
13. Open and transparent scrutiny supports all elements of the Council’s Strategic 

Objectives. 
 
Human Rights, Equality and Data Protection 
 
14. Not Applicable. 
 
Financial 
 
15. Not Appliable. 
 
Actions to be taken to implement the recommended decision(s) 
 

Action Responsible Officer Deadline 

   

 
Appendices 
 

1 Scrutiny Topic Selection Aid 

 
Background papers 

Page 39



4 

 

Body Report title Date 

Scrutiny Panels Work Programme Reports Various 

 

 
Contact: Scott Bonner/ Joanne Dixon 
Email:  scott_bonner@middlesbrough.gov.uk/ 
Joanne_dixon@middlesbrough.gov.uk  
 

  

Page 40

mailto:scott_bonner@middlesbrough.gov.uk/
mailto:Joanne_dixon@middlesbrough.gov.uk


5 

APPENDIX 1  
 

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes - Overview and Scrutiny Board - 26 June 2024
	4 Executive Forward Work Programme
	Appendix A

	6 Local Government Boundary Commission Review 2024 - Consultation Update
	7 Scrutiny Work Programme 2024/2025

